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From: Lucas Kelly <lkelly@hamiltontownship.ca> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 1, 2019 1:57 PM
To: Gazibara, Nevena <Nevena.Gazibara@stantec.com>
Subject: RE: Follow-Up: Highway 401 Planning Study from Cobourg to Colborne (GWP 4060-11-00) &
Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059-17-00) Municipal Advisory Committee
Meeting # 1

Good Morning Nevena

We are receiving multiple calls from local residents regarding this Study and
Interchange.  Most live on Nagle Road North.

The major concern is traffic.  The north end of Nagle Road leads into a well
developed sub-division, which comes   There are significant horizontal and vertical
bends.

What studies have been completed or will be completing due to the traffic impacts
and other items due to the interchange construction

Thanks

Lucas Kelly
Manager of Public Works

The Corporation of the Township of Hamilton 
P O Box 1060
COBOURG ON K9A 4W5
905-342-2810  X 119
905-342-2818 Fax
www.hamiltontownship.ca

This e-mail message(including attachments, if any) is intended for the use of the individual or entity
to which it is addressed and may contain information that is privileged, proprietary, confidential and
exempt from disclosure.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you have
received this communication in error, please notify the sender, delete this e-mail message and
destroy any copies immediately. Thank you

http://www.stantec.com/
mailto:lkelly@hamiltontownship.ca
mailto:Nevena.Gazibara@stantec.com
http://www.hamiltontownship.ca/


From: Gazibara, Nevena 
Sent: Wednesday, October 2, 2019 5:05 PM
To: Lucas Kelly <lkelly@hamiltontownship.ca>
Cc: Terry Hoekstra <thoekstra@cobourg.ca>; Waseem, Muhammad (MTO)
<Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca>; Pipe, Erin (MTO <Erin.Pipe@ontario.ca>; Cooke, Gregg
<gregg.cooke@stantec.com>; Belliveau, Tim <tim.belliveau@stantec.com>
Subject: RE: Follow-Up: Highway 401 Planning Study from Cobourg to Colborne (GWP 4060-11-00) &
Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059-17-00) Municipal Advisory Committee
Meeting # 1

Thank you for your email Lucas. 

Please see additional information regarding the need for the Nagle Road Interchange Study as well as
planned traffic studies and meetings below to be shared with residents that contact the Township
regarding the study.

The need for an interchange at Nagle Road with Highway 401 was identified in the Cobourg East
Community Secondary Plan, which was approved by Cobourg Council in 2005. The proposed
interchange supports the transportation objectives identified in Section 15.7 of the Town of Cobourg
Official Plan (5 Year Review) which was adopted by Cobourg Council in 2010, approved by the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing in 2011 and approved by the Ontario Municipal Board in 2017. The
potential future Highway 401 interchange at Nagle Road is also identified in the Township of Hamilton
Official Plan Schedule ‘A’ – Land Use (July 2012).

This current interchange study includes traffic analysis to help identify the preferred interchange
configuration at Nagle Road. Upon completion of this study, additional planning studies may be required
by Hamilton Township and/or Northumberland County to determine if additional improvements are
required to the municipal road network.

The project team will be scheduling a meeting with the Town of Cobourg, Hamilton Township, and
Northumberland County in the near future to discuss these coordination issues.

Please don’t hesitate to contact me should you have any further questions.

Kind regards,
Nevena Gazibara B.Sc., MREM, ENV SP
Environmental Planner

Direct: 905 381-3249
Fax: 905 385-3534
nevena.gazibara@stantec.com

Stantec
200-835 Paramount Drive
Stoney Creek ON L8J 0B4

mailto:nevena.gazibara@stantec.com


From: Pipe, Erin (MTO) <Erin.Pipe@ontario.ca> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 8:10 AM
To: Addley, Diana <Diana.Addley@stantec.com>
Cc: Cooke, Gregg <gregg.cooke@stantec.com>; Belliveau, Tim <tim.belliveau@stantec.com>;
Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) <Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca>
Subject: FW: Highway 401 Planning Study from Cobourg to Colborne-MECP Comments

Hi Diana;

Please find below comments from Monique Charette of MECP’s SAR Branch.
Monique was provided the fisheries and terrestrial existing conditions reports prior to
the teleconference Nevena organized which also included MNRF (Catherine Warren
and Colin Higgins).

Erin

http://www.stantec.com/


My apologies for not responding sooner.  I have reviewed the Terrestrial Ecosystems
Existing Conditions Report, Fish and Fish Habitat Existing Conditions Report, the
mainline and Nagle exhibits and wildlife collision information.  I’ve provided comments
on only some of the species at risk listed in the reports however all species at risk
and/or species at risk habitat should be considered in the detailed design stage. 

Blanding’s turtle
We recommend that targeted surveys for Blanding’s Turtles be conducted since
suitable wetland features are present within the Study Area.  Blanding’s Turtles also
use terrestrial habitat for nesting, thermoregulation and movement.   Potential nesting
habitat which could include meadows, rocky outcrops, agricultural fields and trails
should be considered when evaluating potential impacts on the species.

Blanding’s Turtles are also known to travel long distances moving through different
habitats especially in spring and fall.  Surveys should not be limited to determining
whether turtles are using aquatic features or whether there is nesting potential within
the Study Area.  Surveys should also consider turtle movement as they could be
travelling through the Study Area if suitable habitat is found on both sides of the
highway.  There are several figures in Appendix A that show the existing highway
crossing multiple watercourses, some of which are connected to waterbodies.  These
areas could be potential movement corridors.

In addition to conducting surveys, we recommend that habitat mapping be prepared
to show where Category 1, 2 and 3 may be present.  The survey results and maps
will help inform potential mitigation measures and/or potential overall benefit projects
if deemed required.  Is there a possibility of adapting existing culverts or new ones to
be suitable for Blanding’s Turtle passage? 

Eastern Whip-poor-will
Although the disturbance from the 401 may prevent the use of the ROW by Eastern
Whip-poor-will (EWPW), they may be found in suitable habitat adjacent to the ROW
and possibly outside of the Study Area which only includes a 120m area.  Activities
taking place in the ROW may have an indirect impact on potential adjacent territories.
The EWPW has a General Habitat Description under the ESA which includes suitable
habitat up to 500m of the nest or centre of approximated defended territory.  In
Ontario, territory range is thought to be approximately 9Ha.  We recommend that a
broader area be considered when evaluating potential impacts on this species.

Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark
Although densities may be lower closer to the 401, if the habitat is suitable and
surveys indicate Bobolink and/or Eastern Meadowlark are present, the ESA applies. 
Birds may generally avoid the ROW as a result of the disturbance associated with the
highway, however they may still be in suitable habitat adjacent to the ROW and could
be impacted by activities taking place in the ROW.  An example of this would be the
interchange at Hwy. 401/38 in Kingston where 3 Eastern Meadowlark were observed
breeding in close proximity to the highway.  Mitigation measures may be required to
ensure potential impacts are minimized for these species. 

From: Charette, Monique (MECP) <monique.charette@ontario.ca> 
Sent: February-06-20 4:28 PM
To:  Pipe, Erin (MTO) Erin.Pipe@ontario.ca>
Subject: Highway 401 Planning Study from Cobourg to Colborne-MECP Comments

Good afternoon Erin,



Eastern Small-footed Myotis
The Eastern Small-footed Myotis has been found roosting in a variety of different
habitats, both anthropogenic (buildings, bridges) and natural (trees).  Although they
mainly rely on rock roosts, we recommend that anthropogenic features also be
considered when conducting surveys.  We also believe that if present, the Eastern
Small-footed Myotis could potentially use the rocks surrounding some of the existing
culverts (eg. unnamed tributaries 0A and 0B).  We recommend that these areas also
be considered in future surveys.

Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis and Tri-coloured Bat
Although habitat was only found irregularly at the periphery of the ROW and not
within the ROW, potential impacts should still be considered especially if tree clearing
is to occur in close proximity to suitable habitat.  Also, bats often move from one roost
site to another within an area.  We recommend that potential networks of roosts be
considered when conducting surveys.

These bats forage along waterways and forest edges.  There are multiple figures in
Appendix A that show the highway crossing watercourses that flow through mixed
forests, coniferous forests, deciduous forests and coniferous swamps.  We
recommend that these areas be evaluated as potential movement corridors for bats. 

Overall Comment
Surveys are recommended for species that have the potential to be present based on
the availability of suitable habitat.  Confirming the presence of species at risk and/or
their habitat will help inform mitigation measures and potential overall benefits that
may be required in the future.  Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you would like to
discuss the type of surveys that may be required or if you have any questions related
to my comments.

Sincerely,

Monique Charette
Management Biologist
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Permissions and Compliance Section
Species At Risk Branch
51 Heakes Lane
Kingston ON, K7M 9B1
(613) 583-3162
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Robinson, Jennifer

From: Laverne Hanley <Laverne.Hanley@enbridge.com>
Sent: Monday, January 23, 2023 3:12 PM
To: Robinson, Jennifer
Cc: Chris Doig; Muhammad Suria
Subject: RE: Highway 401 Nagle Rd Interchange Study (GWP 4059-17-00), Notice of PIC 2

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Jenna, 
I can confirm that as of January 23, 2023 Enbridge Gas does not have any utility infrastructure within 500m of either side 
of Nagle Road along Hwy 401. Further, there are no future plans at this time to install natural gas pipelines at this 
potential interchange location. 
 

 

Laverne Hanley 
Advisor, Construction Project Management 
Eastern Region 
— 
 

ENBRIDGE GAS INC 

TEL: 613.449.5857 
1653 Venture Drive 
Kingston, ON 
K7P 0E9 

Safety. Integrity. Respect. Inclusion. 

 

From: mark‐ups <Mark‐Ups@enbridge.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 4, 2023 3:38 PM 
To: Laverne Hanley <Laverne.Hanley@enbridge.com>; Muhammad Suria <muhammad.suria@enbridge.com>; 
Muhammad Suria <muhammad.suria@enbridge.com> 
Cc: 'Jennifer.Robinson@stantec.com' <Jennifer.Robinson@stantec.com> 
Subject: FW: Highway 401 Nagle Rd Interchange Study (GWP 4059‐17‐00), Notice of PIC 2 
 
Hi Laverne and Muhammad, 
 
This work is in the legacy Union Gas area.  Please action as necessary. 
 
 
Thanks, 
 
Amy Brenham (she/her) 

Supervisor, Drafting and Markups  
Construction Services 
 

ENBRIDGE GAS INC 

TEL: 416-495-6471 | CELL: 647-625-8278 
500 Consumers Road North York, Ontario M2J 1P8  

enbridgegas.com 
Integrity. Safety. Respect. 
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Robinson, Jennifer

From: Addley, Diana
Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 11:22 AM
To: Robinson, Jennifer
Subject: FW: Nagel Road expansion 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

 
 

From: John Logel <mayor@ahtwp.ca>  
Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 8:26 AM 
To: Addley, Diana <Diana.Addley@stantec.com> 
Subject: Fwd: Nagel Road expansion  
 
 

John Logel  
Mayor  
Alnwick Haldimand Township 
mayor@ahtwp.ca 
905‐396‐3152 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: John Logel <mayor@ahtwp.ca> 
Date: February 6, 2023 at 8:00:01 AM EST 
To: conments@highway401cobourgcolborne.ca, Dianna.Addley@stantec.com 
Cc: Troy Gilmour <tgilmour@ahtwp.ca>, Pat Kemp <pkemp@ahtwp.ca>, 
marshalld@northumberlandcounty.ca, moorej@northumberlandcounty.ca 
Subject: Nagel Road expansion 

Hello, my name is John Logel and I am the mayor of Alnwick Haldimand Township. We are one of seven 
municipalities that make up Northumberland County. 
On Jan 18 2023 I received an aggressive text message from one of our residents. The writer stated he 
was disappointed that his mayor was not at the meeting to discuss the Nagel interchange project held 
that day at the Cobourg Community Centre. He was more concerned that the neighbouring mayor from 
Hamilton Township was in fact attending. I texted him back telling him I was not aware of any meeting. 
I found out later and in fact I am looking at a letter from Stantec addressed to the mayor of Hamilton, 
inviting him to the meeting. 
I am disappointed I was unable to attend. 
 
I do realize this intersection is not located in our township, however should a Nagel interchange ever be 
constructed it will have a dramatic effect on my local township roads if highway 401 is ever closed 
between Nagel and County Rd 23. There are no County Roads running east/west along the 401. Only 
Danforth Rd running to the south of 401 would be available but it is simply not capable of being an ETR 
without major, major construction.   
I look forward to a response and a opportunity to discuss my concerns. 
Stay safe, 
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John 
 
John Logel 
Mayor  
Alnwick Haldimand Township 
mayor@ahtwp.ca 
905‐396‐3152 

 Caution: This email originated from outside of Stantec. Please take extra precaution. 

 Attention: Ce courriel provient de l'extérieur de Stantec. Veuillez prendre des précautions supplémentaires. 

 Atención: Este correo electrónico proviene de fuera de Stantec. Por favor, tome precauciones adicionales. 
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Robinson, Jennifer

From: John Logel <mayor@ahtwp.ca>
Sent: Saturday, February 25, 2023 3:53 PM
To: Robinson, Jennifer
Cc: Troy Gilmour; Pat Kemp; marshalld@northumberlandcounty.ca; moorej@northumberlandcounty.ca; 

comments@highway401cobourgcolborne.ca
Subject: Re: Nagel Road expansion 

Hello, Jennifer.  
Thank you for response, much appreciated. 
I sit on the Northumberland County Public Works Committee and I look forward to the meeting and your presentation 
on Monday morning. 
Stay safe, 
John 

John Logel  
Mayor  
Alnwick Haldimand Township 
mayor@ahtwp.ca 
905‐396‐3152 

On Feb 24, 2023, at 7:15 PM, Robinson, Jennifer <Jennifer.Robinson@stantec.com> wrote: 

Hello, 

Thank you for taking the time to provide your comments. We apologize that you did not receive 
notification of Public Information Centre (PIC) 2.  Your contact information has been added to the study 
mailing list and you will be directly notified of future study milestones, including the Notice of Study 
Completion.  While we regret that you were not aware of PIC 2, the study team will be making a 
presentation about this study and answering questions at the upcoming Northumberland County Public 
Works Committee meeting on February 27, 2023 at 9:00 AM, which we hope you will be able to 
attend. 

Your concerns regarding potential traffic impacts within the Township of Alnwick/Haldimand during 
construction have been noted by the study team. Please note that construction of the Preferred Plan is 
being planned in phases. This will allow for the replacement of the existing Nagle Road bridge to be 
independent of construction of the Nagle Road interchange ramps.  While the timing of construction of the 
Nagle Road interchange is currently unknown, it is anticipated that the traffic demands associated with 
growth and development of the Cobourg East Secondary Plan area will necessitate a new interchange at 
Nagle Road. Additional transportation studies will be completed within the Town of Cobourg boundary in 
the future to confirm the need for additional roadway improvements, such as widening and/or 
reconstructing roadways to support future traffic demands, as development of the Cobourg East 
Secondary Plan area progresses.  

Potential detour routes have been identified as part of this study to help plan for traffic detours along 
dedicated routes during the demolition of the existing Nagle Road bridge and construction of the new 
bridge. At this time, a section of Highway 401, between County Road 45 and County Road 25, is 
proposed to be closed for one overnight duration (approximately 12-18 hours) to accommodate 
demolition of the existing bridge. During this time, Highway 401 traffic will be re-routed to CR45, CR22, 
and CR 25. Additional short-term overnight Highway 401 closures may be required during the 
construction of the new bridge. The number and duration of those full closures will be confirmed during 



detail design. Please note that preliminary construction phasing and potential detour routes will be 
presented at the upcoming Northumberland County Public Works Committee meeting.  

A comprehensive mail out of the Notice of PIC 2 was undertaken which included a Canada Post Ad Mail 
Drop on January 9, 2023 to approximately 2,070 residences located along Canada Post delivery routes 
originating within the study area, some of which deliver to residences within the Township of 
Alnwick/Halidmand, along County Road 22 and Noble Road, among other local roads within the 
Township. The mail out also included, but was not limited to, mailing/emailing a copy of the notice to 
those on the study contact list (January 4, 2023), posting a copy of the notice on the Town of Cobourg 
website (January 5, 2023) and Township of Hamilton facebook page (January 6, 2023), and publishing a 
copy of the notice within the Northumberland News newspaper (January 5, 2023).  

The Class Environmental Assessment (EA) study process, including the findings of the technical studies, 
the potential environmental impacts of the project and proposed mitigation measures, will be documented 
within a Transportation Environmental Study Report (TESR), which is tentatively scheduled to be 
completed in 2023. A Notice of Study Completion will be issued once the TESR has been completed, at 
which time it will become available for public comment for a minimum of 30 days. Additional details 
regarding this Class EA study, including the information shared at Public Information Centres 1 and 2, is 
available for review on the study website (Highway 401 Cobourg to Colborne 
(highway401cobourgcolborne.ca). 

Thank you again for taking the time to provide your comments. Should you have any additional questions, 
comments or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the project team.  

Kind regards, 

Jenn Robinson
Environmental Planner, Transportation GTA 
Jennifer.Robinson@stantec.com 
Stantec 

 

The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written 
authorization. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately.
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From: Sanders, Cheryl <sandersc@northumberland.ca>  
Sent: March 16, 2023 10:03 AM 
To: Robinson, Jennifer <Jennifer.Robinson@stantec.com>; Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) 
<Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca>; gregg.cooke@stantec.com 
Cc: Addley, Diana <Diana.Addley@stantec.com>; Mather, Maddison <matherm@northumberland.ca>; Marshall, Denise 
<marshalld@northumberland.ca>; Sanders, Cheryl <sandersc@northumberland.ca> 
Subject: 2023‐02‐27 Public Works Committee ‐ Delegation 

CAUTION ‐‐ EXTERNAL E‐MAIL ‐ Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

Good afternoon Jennifer,  

On behalf of staff and Members of County Council, please find attached a letter of thanks for taking 
the time to attend the February 27th, 2023 Public Works Committee to present ‘Hwy 401 Nagle Road 
Interchange Study’  

Thank you, 

Cheryl Sanders | Deputy Clerk 
Northumberland County | 555 Courthouse Road, Cobourg, ON, K9A 5J6  
T 905-372-3329 ext. 2361 | F 905-372-1746  
E sandersc@northumberland.ca| www.northumberlandcounty.ca 



555 Courthouse Road, Cobourg ON K9A 5J6 | (905) 372-3329 | 

March 16, 2023 

Jennifer Robinson 
Environmental Planner, Transportation GTA 
Stantec 

Re: Delegation 

Dear Jennifer Robinson, 

On behalf of staff and Members of County Council, I would like to extend my sincere 
thanks to Gregg Cooke, Consultant Project Manager - Stantec, and Muhammed Waseem, 
Senior Project Engineer - Ministry of Transportation, for taking the time to attend the 
February 27, 2023 Public Works Committee to present on ‘Hwy 401 Nagle Road 
Interchange Study’.  

Please be advised that the Public Works Committee and County Council subsequently 
received the presentation for information purposes.  

Once again, thank you for taking the time to make a presentation to staff and Members of 
the Public Works Committee.  

Sincerely, 

Maddison Mather 
Manager Legislative Services / Clerk 
County of Northumberland 



Robinson, Jennifer

From: Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) <Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca>
Sent: Thursday, March 16, 2023 11:22 AM
To: Sanders, Cheryl; Robinson, Jennifer; Cooke, Gregg
Cc: Addley, Diana; Mather, Maddison; Marshall, Denise
Subject: RE: 2023-02-27 Public Works Committee - Delegation

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Thank you very much Cheryl for the appreciation. 

Regards, 

Muhammad Waseem, P. Eng.  
Senior Project Engineer – Highway Engineering 
Project Delivery East  
Ministry of Transportation | Eastern Region 
1355 John Counter Boulevard |Kingston, ON K7L 5A3 
T: 613-449-2615 | F: 613-540-5106 
Email: Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca 



2

From: Barboza, Karla (MCM)  
Sent: April‐14‐23 10:04 AM 
To: dianne.addley@stantec.com 
Cc: Cooke, Gregg <gregg.cooke@stantec.com>; Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) <Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca>; Pipe, 
Erin (MTO) <Erin.Pipe@ontario.ca>; Minkin, Dan (MCM) <Dan.Minkin@ontario.ca> 
Subject: Notice of PIC #2 ‐ Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059‐17‐00) [MCM File 0010309] 

Good morning Dianne (et al.), 

Hope this email finds you well. 

Thanks for sending the Notice of Public Information Centre #2 for the above referenced project to the Ministry 
of Citizenship and Multiculturalism (MCM). 

Please note that we had some changes in our office (name of ministry, staff and physical location): 

 Please note that, as of October 17, 2022, the responsibility for administration of the Ontario Heritage Act
and matters related to cultural heritage recently transferred from the Ministry of Tourism, Culture and
Sport (MTCS) to the Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism (MCM). Individual staff roles and contact
information remain unchanged.

 We are now located at 400 University (vs 401 Bay Street). However, we have been asking proponents to
send only electronic notices and documentation.

 Could you please update your contact list to include;
 Karla Barboza, Team Lead ‐ Heritage | Heritage Planning Unit (Citizenship and Multiculturalism)  | 416‐

660‐1027 | Karla.Barboza@ontario.ca
 Dan Minkin, Heritage Planner | Heritage Planning Unit (Citizenship and Multiculturalism)  | 416‐786‐

7553 | dan.minkin@ontario.ca

I would appreciate if you can us an electronic copy of the Notice of PIC #2 and advise us on the status of 
technical cultural heritage studies for this project. 

Thanks again, 
Karla 

Karla Barboza, RPP, MCIP, CAHP 
Team Lead, Heritage | Heritage Planning Unit | Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism | 416‐660‐1027 |karla.barboza@ontario.ca  

 Caution: This email originated from outside of Stantec. Please take extra precaution. 
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From: Addley, Diana <Diana.Addley@stantec.com>  
Sent: April‐19‐23 11:39 AM 
To: Barboza, Karla (MCM) <Karla.Barboza@ontario.ca> 
Cc: Minkin, Dan (MCM) <Dan.Minkin@ontario.ca>; Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) <Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca>; 
Pipe, Erin (MTO) <Erin.Pipe@ontario.ca>; Cooke, Gregg <gregg.cooke@stantec.com> 
Subject: RE: Notice of PIC #2 ‐ Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059‐17‐00) [MCM File 0010309] 

CAUTION ‐‐ EXTERNAL E‐MAIL ‐ Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 
Good morning Karla, 

Thank you for providing the updated contact information.  Our records have been updated accordingly.  Please also find 
the Notice of Public Information Centre 2 attached as requested. 

A Cultural Heritage Resource Assessment (CHRA) was completed as part of this study in 2019. A copy of this report will 
be sent to you by Michelle Hedges, MTO Heritage Specialist. 

Thank you, and please do not hesitate to let me know if you have any questions and/or would like to discuss anything in 
more detail. 

Kind regards, 

Diana Addley
Senior Environmental Planner 
Direct: 905 415-6401 
diana.addley@stantec.com 

  

The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately.



From: Hedges, Michelle (MTO)
To: Barboza, Karla (MCM)
Cc: Pipe, Erin (MTO)
Subject: Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059-17-00) [MCM File 0010309]
Date: Friday, April 21, 2023 2:28:38 PM
Attachments: rpt_165001106_CHRA_Nagle Road_MTO_20190516_revised.pdf

Hi Karla,

With reference to the recent message informing you of PIC #2 sent by Diana Addley
from Stantec on behalf of MTO, please find attached the CHRAR for Highway 401
Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059-17-00) [MCM File 0010309].

Take care, Michelle

Michelle Hedges 
Senior Policy Analyst - Heritage
Environmental Policy Office | Transportation Policy Branch
Ministry of Transportation
c. (437) 772-4629

mailto:Michelle.Hedges@ontario.ca
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Executive Summary 


The Ministry of Transportation Ontario (MTO) and Town of Cobourg retained Stantec Consulting Ltd. 


(Stantec) to undertake a Planning, Preliminary Design, and Class Environmental Assessment (Class EA) 


Study on Highway 401 for a new interchange near Nagle Road in the Town of Cobourg and Township of 


Hamilton (GWP-4059-17-00). The purpose of the study is to identify a Recommended Plan that 


addresses current and future transportation needs in the Study Area. The proposed Nagle Road & 


Highway 401 Interchange is a long-term transportation need, as identified in the Town of Cobourg 


Transportation Master Plan (TMP) and Official Plan (OP).  


As part of the Class EA Study, a Cultural Heritage Resource Assessment (CHRA) has been completed to 


identify heritage resources, including built heritage and cultural heritage landscapes, present within, and 


adjacent to, the Study Area. A land use history was completed to provide a cultural context for the Study 


Area and to provide a background upon which to base evaluations. Potential heritage resources were 


identified, inventoried and evaluated according to Ontario Regulation (O. Reg.) 9/06, the criteria for 


determining cultural heritage value or interest (CHVI) (Government of Ontario 2006a). Where CHVI was 


identified, the resource was mapped, and recommendations made for further study. 


In order to identify protected properties, the Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport, the Ontario Heritage 


Trust, the Township of Hamilton, and the Town of Cobourg were consulted. As a result of the 


consultation, three protected heritage properties were identified in relation to the Study Area, none of 


which are directly situated within the Study Area.  


A windshield survey was undertaken to identify potential heritage resources within, and adjacent to, the 


Study Area and confirm the presence of previously identified heritage properties. Where identified, the 


potential heritage properties were photographed from the public right-of-way. A total of four properties 


were identified as potential heritage properties. In each case an evaluation of the property was 


undertaken according to O. Reg. 9/06. Each potential heritage resource was considered both as an 


individual structure and as a potential component of a cultural heritage landscape. Following the 


evaluation, one cultural heritage resource was identified within the Study Area. 


Based on the findings of the CHRA, the following recommendations are made: 


1. Heritage resources should be avoided during any proposed construction activities.


2. A Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA) should be completed following the determination of a


Recommended Plan to identify impacts to heritage resources within, and adjacent to, the Study Area.


The results of the HIA will be included in an updated version of this report. Depending on the selected


alternative for the site, a property specific Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report (CHER) may be


needed prior to the completion of HIA. The additional CHER will be completed during Detailed


Design, as required.
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3. To assist in the retention of historic information, copies of this report should be deposited with a local


repository of historic material and municipal planning staff.


The Executive Summary highlights key points from the report only; for complete information and findings 


the reader should examine the complete report. 
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1.0 INTRODUCTION 


1.1 STUDY PURPOSE, OBJECTIVES, AND METHODS 


The Ministry of Transportation Ontario (MTO) and Town of Cobourg retained Stantec Consulting Ltd. 


(Stantec) to undertake a Planning, Preliminary Design, and Class Environmental Assessment (Class EA) 


Study on Highway 401 for a new interchange near Nagle Road in the Town of Cobourg and Township of 


Hamilton (GWP-4059-17-00). The Class EA proposed Nagle Road interchange site boundary extends 


around Highway 401, west and east of Nagle Road for approximately 2.26 kilometres (km) (Figure 1). The 


purpose of the Class EA is to identify a recommended plan that addresses current and future 


transportation needs in the Study Area as part of the Ministry’s ongoing review of safety and operational 


needs of the provincial highway network. This study is a “Group B” project under the Class Environmental 


Assessment for Provincial Transportation Facilities (MTO 2000). 


As part of the Class EA on Highway 401, a Cultural Heritage Resource Assessment (CHRA) is required to 


identify heritage resources, including built heritage and cultural heritage landscapes, present within, and 


adjacent to, the Study Area. The Study Area is defined in the MTO Environmental Reference for Highway 


Design as all lands to be affected adversely through displacement and/or disruption by proposed highway 


design and construction within the existing and proposed highway right-of-way (RoW) and the off-route 


zones adjacent or abutting the existing RoW (MTO 2013). For the purpose of this CHRA, the Study Area 


includes a 50-metre buffer around the proposed Nagle Road interchange site boundary (Figure 2).   


A land use history was completed to provide cultural context for the Study Area. Potential heritage 


resources were identified through consultation and a windshield survey, then inventoried and evaluated 


according to Ontario Regulation (O. Reg.) 9/06, the criteria for determining cultural heritage value or 


interest (CHVI) (Government of Ontario 2006a). Where CHVI was identified, the resource was mapped 


and recommendations made for further study, as necessary. The objectives of the CHRA are summarized 


below: 


• Prepare a land use history of the Study Area for use in the identification and evaluation of heritage


resources;


• Identify potential heritage resources within the Study Area through a preliminary property inspection


from the public RoW;


• Evaluate the CHVI of the potential heritage resources to determine the number of heritage resources


present; and


• Prepare recommendations for future work where heritage resources were identified.


This CHRA was conducted in accordance with Section 3.7 of the MTO Environmental Reference for 


Highway Design (MTO 2013) and the Environmental Guide for Built Heritage and Cultural Heritage 


Landscapes (MTO 2007).  
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A site assessment was undertaken on July 18 and 19, 2018, by Cultural Heritage Specialists Laura 


Walter and Frank Smith, both with Stantec. The weather conditions were clear and sunny. Historical 


research was conducted at Western University, London Public Library, and supplemented by material 


available through online resources. 
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2.0 METHODOLOGY 


2.1 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 


The requirement to consider built heritage and cultural heritage landscapes within the Highway Design 


and Construction Process is discussed in MTO’s Environmental Guide for Built Heritage and Cultural 


Heritage Landscapes (MTO 2007). As identified in the document, the need for the identification, 


evaluation, management, and conservation of Ontario’s cultural heritage is acknowledged as an essential 


component of the EA process in Ontario. The Environmental Guide for Built Heritage and Cultural 


Heritage Landscapes provides guidance on how cultural heritage resources are considered in 


transportation projects during MTO’s design and construction phases.  


The MTO process for considering cultural heritage resources within the highway design and construction 


process is based on the Ontario Heritage Act policies and guidelines developed by the Ministry of 


Tourism, Culture and Sport (MTCS) (formerly the Ministry of Culture) and MTO, including: 


• Guideline for Preparing the Cultural Heritage Resource Component of Environmental Assessments


(Ministry of Culture and Communications 1992)


• Guidelines on the Man-Made Heritage Component of Environmental Assessments (Ministry of


Culture and Recreation 1980)


• Ontario Heritage Toolkit (Ministry of Culture 2006)


• Standards and Guidelines for the Conservation of Provincial Heritage Properties (MTCS 2010)


• Ontario Heritage Bridge Guidelines for Provincially-Owned Bridges (MTO 2008)


• Heritage Bridges and Identification and Assessment Guide Ontario 1945-1965 (Heritage Resources


Centre 2005)


MTO’s cultural heritage assessment and management process is broadly divided into two steps that are 


carried out in the preliminary design and detail design phases. A description of the cultural heritage 


assessment process for these phases is provided below in Section 2.1.1 and a flow chart showing this 


process is provided in Appendix A.  


2.1.1 The Process 


Step 1: During Preliminary Design, a CHRA or a Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report is prepared to 


identify cultural heritage resources within, or adjacent to, the Study Area, evaluate these resources, and 


carry out an impact assessment. This step involves two broad tasks: 
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1. Identification of cultural heritage resources through determining the Study Area and study zones,


collecting background information, consulting with stakeholders, identifying cultural heritage


landscapes and built heritage resources with CHVI, and undertaking a field survey.


2. Creation of an assessment and preservation/mitigation strategy using the MTCS guidelines identified


above in Section 2.1. The assessment involves determining CHVI, describing impacts, and


developing preservation and mitigation strategies.


Step 2: Detail Design. This step involves: 


1. Carrying out an update to the assessment and preservation mitigation strategy. This involves


updating the field survey and assessment to confirm existing conditions, identifying and assessing


additional impacts, and developing mitigation details for built heritage resources, heritage bridges,


cultural heritage landscapes, and construction-related effects.


This CHRA represents “Step 1” and is being carried out during the Nagle Road Interchange Study. 


2.2 BACKGROUND HISTORY 


The CHRA was composed of a program of archival research focused on the Study Area. To familiarize 


the study team with the Study Area, local historical resources were consulted, archival documents were 


reviewed, and a summary of the historical background of the local area was prepared. Specifically, 


historical mapping was consulted to identify the presence of structures, settlements, and other potential 


heritage resources in advance of the field program. Mapping from 1878, 1930, 1938, 1969, and 2009 was 


reviewed. 


2.3 MUNICIPAL AND AGENCY CONSULTATION 


Listings of locally and provincially designated properties, districts, and easements for each municipality 


were collected from the Township of Hamilton, the Town of Cobourg, the Ontario Heritage Trust, and the 


MTCS. Consultation with these interested agencies and municipalities within which the Project is 


proposed was undertaken to determine the presence of designated, listed, or registered heritage 


properties within the Study Area.  


Recognition of protected properties varies greatly and is dependent on the level of CHVI identified or, in 


some cases, the level of investigation undertaken. For the purpose of this study, any property previously 


identified by municipal staff or provincial agencies as containing, or having the potential to contain, CHVI 


was determined to be a protected property.  
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2.4 FIELD PROGRAM 


A vehicular windshield survey was conducted on July 18 and 19, 2018, from publicly accessible 


roadways, unless specified otherwise. During the surveys, the Study Area was surveyed for potential 


heritage resources, including both potential built heritage resources and components of cultural heritage 


landscapes. Where identified, these were photographed, and their locations recorded. Characteristics of 


each potential heritage resource were noted while in the field.  


In general, buildings and structures of more than 40 years of age were evaluated during the survey for 


their potential to satisfy O. Reg. 9/06 criteria. The use of the 40-year threshold is generally accepted by 


both the federal and provincial authorities as a preliminary screening measure for CHVI. This practice 


does not imply that all buildings and structures more than 40 years of age are inherently of significant 


heritage value, nor does it exclude exceptional examples constructed within the past 40 years of being of 


significant cultural heritage value. 


2.5 EVALUATION OF CULTURAL HERITAGE VALUE OR INTEREST 


The criteria for determining CHVI is defined by O. Reg. 9/06. Each potential heritage resource was 


considered both as an individual structure and as a cultural landscape. Where CHVI was identified, a 


structure or landscape was assigned a Cultural Heritage Landscape (CHL) or Built Heritage Resource 


(BHR) number and the property was determined to contain a heritage resource. Cultural Heritage 


Research Forms, including evaluations for each property, are contained within Appendix B.  


2.5.1 Ontario Regulation 9/06 


In order to identify CHVI, at least one of the following criteria must be met: 


1. The property has design value or physical value because it,


a. is a rare, unique, representative, or early example of a style, type, expression, material, or


construction method,


b. displays a high degree of craftsmanship or artistic merit, or


c. demonstrates a high degree of technical or scientific achievement.


2. The property has historical value or associative value because it,


a. has direct associations with a theme, event, belief, person, activity, organization, or institution that


is significant to a community,


b. yields, or has the potential to yield, information that contributes to an understanding of a


community or culture, or
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c. demonstrates or reflects the work or ideas of an architect, artist, builder, designer, or theorist who


is significant to a community.


3. The property has contextual value because it,


a. is important in defining, maintaining, or supporting the character of an area,


b. is physically, functionally, visually, or historically linked to its surroundings, or


c. is a landmark.


(Government of Ontario 2006a) 
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3.0 HISTORICAL SUMMARY 


3.1 INTRODUCTION 


The Study Area is located in eastern Ontario and spans the Township of Hamilton and the Town of 


Cobourg, within Northumberland County, Ontario. The Study Area extends around Highway 401, from 


approximately one km west of Nagle Road to one km east of Nagle Road (Figure 2).   


Specifically, the Study Area spans across the following historical Lots and Concessions of the Township 


of Hamilton, within the County of Northumberland: 


• Lots 7 to 12, Concession 1


The following sections outline the historical development of the Study Area from the period of settlement 


to the 20th century.  


3.2 PHYSIOGRAPHY 


The Study Area is situated within the South Slope and Iroquois Plain physiographic regions. The South 


Slope is located between the Iroquois Plain along Lake Ontario and the Oak Ridges Moraine. It is the 


southern slope of the Oak Ridges Moraine and part of the south strip of the Peel Plain. The south slope 


rises to contact with the Oak Ridge Moraine at about 240 to 300 metres (m) above sea level. 


Encompassing land from the Niagara Escarpment to the Trent River, the South Slope totals 


approximately 2,434 square km (Chapman and Putnam 1984: 172).  


The portion of the South Slope within the Study Area in Northumberland County is characterized by large 


drumlins oriented southwest, diverting the streams down the slope. In Northumberland County the South 


Slope contains fine sand and silt on the surface. The till is highly calcareous and cultivated soils often 


contain free lime carbonates on the surface. The agricultural output of the South Slope is similar to the 


adjacent Iroquois Plain and includes orchards, canning crops, and livestock (Chapman and Putnam 1984: 


173-174). 


The Iroquois Plain physiographic region is the lowland bordering Lake Ontario. During the last Ice Age 


this area was underwater and part of glacial Lake Iroquois, which emptied eastward at Rome, New York. 


The Iroquois Plain extends from the Niagara River to the Trent River (Chapman and Putnam 1984: 190). 


The portion of the Iroquois Plain within the Study Area in Northumberland County is about 5.6 km in width 


and has a belted pattern. Along the route of Highway 401, the high shoreline of Lake Iroquois is visible. 


The slight slope and sand terrace of the old shoreline facilitated the construction of the highway 


(Chapman and Putnam 1984: 194). 
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3.3 SURVEY AND SETTLEMENT 


The first survey of the Township of Hamilton occurred in 1791, when Augustus Jones surveyed the 


township from the shoreline of Lake Ontario to one mile inland. The township was named in honour of 


Henry Hamilton, Lieutenant-Governor of Quebec from 1782 to 1785. In 1796, the survey of the township 


was completed by William Hambly and Root (Milne n.d.). The Township of Hamilton was surveyed into 11 


concessions running north from Lake Ontario and 35 lots running west. The lots were 200 acres in size 


and surveyed using the single-front survey system (Plate 1). In total, the Township of Hamilton 


encompassed 67,715 acres (Belden 1878: i).  


Plate 1: Single-Front Survey System (Dean 1969) 


John Graves Simcoe, Lieutenant-Governor of Upper Canada from 1791 to 1796, intended to establish a 


“free, honourable British Government” in North America” (Craig 1963: 21). Simcoe wished to settle the 


newly surveyed townships of Upper Canada with immigrants from the United States and Britain. He 


initially planned this through settlement schemes that involved granting entire townships to colonizers 


whom promised to populate the township in return for large land grants (Ennals 1978: 96). In October 


1792, Simcoe received a petition from Marshall Jones and several associates who requested to lead the 


settlement of the Township of Hamilton (Ennals 1978: 97). This method of settling townships proved to be 


a failure. Most prospective immigrants to Upper Canada preferred to deal directly with the government 


rather than settle using an intermediary. The practice was abandoned in 1796 and many of the claims 


upon townships were revoked or challenged (Craig 1963: 33).  
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One of the first decisions regarding the newly reopened township was to grant 1,200 acres of land to the 


children of all members of Upper Canada’s Executive Council (Ennals 1978: 100). Many other large 


grants of land were given in the rear parts of the township before 1810, accounting for about 16,000 acres 


of land in the Township of Hamilton. Other early grants in the township included new settlers arriving from 


the United States and land grants to the children of Loyalists (Ennals 1978: 102, 104). 


3.4 19TH CENTURY DEVELOPMENT 


Through the first half of the 19th century the main economic drivers of the Township of Hamilton were 


agriculture and lumber. The industries that did exist, such as mills, tanneries, distilleries, and foundries, 


produced essential agricultural goods. The township’s location on Lake Ontario meant that the agricultural 


output of the township could easily be transported (Ennals 1978: 167). In 1842, the population of the 


Township of Hamilton was recorded as 4,700 (Ennals 1978: 207).  


The township’s prime location meant that land was in demand and the average size of a farm decreased 


throughout the 19th century. In 1831, the average farm size in the township was 141 acres: this decreased 


to 100 acres by 1861 (Ennals 1978: 169). The largest farms were in the northern half of the township, 


while smaller farms tended to be located closer to Cobourg (Ennals 1978: 170). The high demand for land 


in the township also meant that land was cleared at a quick pace. By 1861, three-quarters of land in the 


township was cleared (Ennals 1978: 172). 


Farming practices in the Township of Hamilton in the 19th century consisted of diversified farms which 


grew a variety of crops, and mono-culture farms, which primarily grew cash crops such as wheat. 


Livestock was also an important part of agriculture in the township with the hills in the township being well 


suited to raising sheep. The Township of Hamilton had one of the first cheese factories in Upper Canada, 


with cheese from the township being exported to Toronto as early as 1836 (Ennals 1978: 204-205).  


The primary harbour in the township was at Cobourg. The town was established in 1801 when a sawmill 


was built at the mouth of Factory Creek. In 1802, Elia Jones opened the first store in Cobourg (Guillet 


1948: 9-10). The village was originally variously known as Amherst (Belden 1878: viii), Buckville, or 


Hamilton. In 1819 it was renamed Cobourg in honour of the marriage of Princess Charlotte to Prince 


Leopold of Saxe-Corburg (Guillet 1948: 9-10). Cobourg was incorporated as a town in 1837 and emerged 


as a regional trade centre (Petryshyn 2012).  


The Grand Trunk Railway (GTR) was constructed through part of the Township of Hamilton in 1856. The 


opening of the railway provided easier access to the cities of Toronto and Montreal and allowed the 


township’s agricultural output to be more quickly transported to market. In 1878, the population of the 


Township of Hamilton was 5,721 (Belden 1878: i). Mapping from 1878 shows the late 19th century 


development surrounding the Study Area and the layout of the GTR to the south (Figure 3).  
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3.5 20TH CENTURY DEVELOPMENT 


At the turn of the 20th century, agricultural practices in the Township of Hamilton shifted to a more 


predominant focus on cattle raising (United Counties Centennial Book Committee [UCCBC] 1967: 31). 


In 1921, the population of the Township of Hamilton and Cobourg was 8,335 (Department of Trade and 


Commerce 1924). The township had 593 farms, with the majority of farms being between 50 and 200 


acres in size, occupying a total of 60,448 acres in the township. Of that acreage, 27,741 acres were used 


for crops, 2,096 acres were fallow, 10,771 acres were used as pasture and the rest were unimproved. 


The vast majority of farmers owned their land, with only 94 farmers being recorded as tenant farmers 


(Department of Trade and Commerce 1925).  


By 1951, the population of Hamilton Township and Cobourg had climbed to 10,163. The source of the 


population increase was found in the township as the population of Cobourg had declined since the Great 


Depression (Dominion Bureau of Statistics 1951).  


When Highway 401 was completed through the Township of Hamilton in the mid-20th century the trip from 


Cobourg to Toronto could be completed in about one hour. The access provided by the highway spurred 


industrial and suburban development around Cobourg. The northern end of the township became a 


tourist destination, with Rice Lake being known as a good fishing spot (UCCBC 1967: 5). As of 2016, the 


population of the Township of Hamilton was 10,942, a 2.2% increase since 2011 (Statistics Canada 


2017a). The population of Cobourg in the 2016 Census was 19,031, a 5.2% increase since 2011 


(Statistics Canada 2017b). 


3.6 HIGHWAY 401 


By the 1930s, congestion along Highway 2 was becoming increasingly frequent. Highway 2 was a two-


lane highway that ran from Windsor to the Quebec/Ontario border. The highway ran through many 


downtown areas along its route and a new road was needed to bypass these towns. Plans were 


developed before the Second World War for a new limited access highway through the Windsor-Quebec 


border corridor to ease congestion. However, the war effort limited the government’s ability to undertake 


large scale transportation projects. Following the war, the first portion of the new super highway was 


completed in Scarborough in 1947; initially known as Highway 2A, it was changed to Highway 401 in 


1952. 


Construction of Highway 401 in Northumberland County took place during the late 1950s to 1960 (Bevers 


2018). Within the Eastern Region, in 1958, Highway 401 was opened east of the Study Area between 


Trenton (Highway 33) and Brighton (Highway 30) (Department of Highways Ontario [DHO] 1959: 27). 


Within the Study Area, grading occurred and bridges were constructed along the highway. Between 


Newcastle and Brighton, 28 structures were reported under construction in 1958 (DHO 1959: 82). Within 


Northumberland County that year, $6,644,525 was spent on the construction and maintenance of 


Highway 401 (DHO 1959: 211). The 1960 Annual Report of the Department of Highways Ontario states 


that a major feature of the construction program for the fiscal year 1959-1960 was bridge construction, as 


33 bridges were under construction between Newcastle and Brighton, with 20 completed bridges (DHO 
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1960: 95). Grading along the highway also continued within the Study Area between Newcastle and 


Brighton (DHO 1960: 95). Expenditures on the highway increased within Northumberland for 1959, with a 


total of $7,589,133 spent on Highway 401 construction and maintenance (DHO 1960: 237). Figure 4 


shows the layout of the completed Highway 401.  


Construction of Highway 401 continued in phases throughout much of the 1960s. The final link of the 


818 km highway was completed in 1968. Modifications to Highway 401 have been constant since before 


the final stretches were even completed, with widening taking place in Metropolitan Toronto during the 


1960s. In 1965, the highway was ceremoniously named “MacDonald-Cartier Freeway” in memory of John 


A. MacDonald and George Etienne Cartier, noted Fathers of Confederation. In 2007, the section of 


Highway 401 from Toronto to Trenton received the ceremonial name “Highway of Heroes” in memory of 


soldiers who served during the War in Afghanistan (Bevers 2018). This section of the highway was 


designated the Highway of Heroes as it served as the route for funeral convoys carrying fallen Canadian 


Forces service men and women from the Canadian Forces Base at Trenton to the coroner’s office in 


Toronto (Highway of Heroes Tree Campaign 2018). 
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4.0 RESULTS 


4.1 AGENCY AND MUNICIPAL CONSULTATION 


In order to identify heritage resources, the MTCS, the Ontario Heritage Trust, the Town of Cobourg, and 


the Township of Hamilton were consulted. As a result of the consultation, three protected properties were 


identified. Upon further inspection, none of the protected properties were determined to be situated within 


the Nagle Road Interchange Study Area.  


Karla Barboza, Team Lead, Heritage with the MTCS reported that there is one provincial heritage 


property of provincial significance, 10568 Highway 2, the Barnum House Museum, in close vicinity to the 


Highway 401 Planning Study Area. Barnum House Museum is outside the Nagle Road Interchange Study 


Area. Thomas Wicks, Heritage Planner with the Ontario Heritage Trust, confirmed that the Trust does not 


have any real property interests within or adjacent to the Nagle Road Interchange Study Area.  


At the municipal level, staff was consulted to determine the presence of any protected properties. Sandra 


Stothart, Planning Co-Ordinator with the Township of Hamilton, reported two heritage properties 


designated under Part IV of the OHA, 9340 and 9592 Danforth Road East. Both identified properties are 


more than 680 m southeast of the Study Area. Dave Johnson, Planner 1-Heritage with the Town of 


Cobourg responded that the Town does not have any listed or designated properties within or adjacent to 


the Study Area.  


Table 1: Protected Heritage Properties 


Municipality Location/Municipal 
Address 


Level of Recognition Relationship to 
Study Area 


Township of Alnwick/ 
Haldimand 


10568 Highway 2 Provincial Heritage Property South of Study Area 


Township of Hamilton 9340 Danforth Road East Designated under Part IV of OHA South of Study Area 


Township of Hamilton 9592 Danforth Road East Designated under Part IV of OHA South of Study Area 


4.2 FIELD PROGRAM 


4.2.1 Potential Heritage Resources 


As described in Section 2.3, a windshield survey of the Study Area was undertaken to identify potential 


heritage resources situated within the Study Area and confirm the presence of previously identified 


protected properties. As property parcel information was not available for the Study Area, the relationship 


of each individual property to the Study Area was determined through their proximity to the Study Area, 


tree lines, field layouts, historic lot lines, and the spacing between structures and their associated 


driveways. Where identified, the site was photographically documented from publicly accessible 


roadways. During the course of the survey, a total of four individual sites were identified as containing 
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potential heritage resources (Figure 5). Of those sites identified, none had been previously identified by 


provincial or municipal heritage staff.  


Of the four potential heritage resources, two are farmsteads, one is a residence, and one is 


undetermined. The farmsteads date to the late 19th century or early 20th century and the residence dates 


to the mid to late 20th century. Structures on the undetermined property appear on historical mapping from 


1878. The Study Area is situated within a rural portion of Northumberland County, with Cobourg the 


largest community to the southwest.  


4.3 EVALUATON OF CULTURAL HERITAGE VALUE OR INTEREST 


Where a potential heritage resource was identified within the Study Area, an evaluation of the CHVI of the 


property was undertaken. Detailed evaluations are contained within Appendix B. As described in Section 


2.5, each potential heritage resource was evaluated according to O. Reg. 9/06, the criteria for determining 


CHVI. Where CHVI was identified, a resource was assigned a BHR or CHL number. There were four 


potential heritage resources identified, three of which were determined to contain heritage resources 


(Figure 5; Appendix B). One of the identified properties, 9234 Danforth Road East, contains structures 


that date prior to 1878 (determined through historic mapping). As structures were not visible from the 


roadway due to set back and property rise, the integrity of the heritage resources could not be determined 


in the field, but their presence on historic mapping warranted their evaluation against O. Reg. 9/06.  An 


understanding of the relationship of the resource to the Study Area informs next steps and frames the 


impact assessment approach. Table 2 summarizes the findings. 
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Table 2: Summary of Determination of CHVI 


Municipal 
Address 


Previous 
Heritage 


Recognition 


Resource Type Photograph Identified 
Attributes 


CHVI CHL/BHR 
Number 


Relationship 
to Study Area 


2197 Nagle 
Road 


No Residence N/A No N/A Within the 
Study Area 


2241 Nagle 
Road 


No Farmstead Residence, barn, 
and mature trees 


Yes CHL-1 Within the 
Study Area 


9148 Danforth 
Road East 


No Farmstead Residence, tree 
allée, and wood 
fencing 


Yes CHL-2 Adjacent to 
the Study 
Area 
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


9234 Danforth 
Road East 


No Farmstead Undetermined Yes CHL-3 Adjacent to 
the Study 
Area 
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5.0 DESCRIPTION OF UNDERTAKING AND ANTICIPATED 
IMPACTS 


5.1 DESCRIPTION OF UNDERTAKING 


The MTO and the Town of Cobourg have retained Stantec to undertake a Planning, Preliminary Design, 


and Class EA Study on Highway 401 for a new interchange near Nagle Road in the Town of Cobourg and 


Township of Hamilton. The purpose of this study is to identify a Recommended Plan that addresses 


future transportation and planning needs in the study area. The proposed Nagle Road and Highway 401 


Interchange is a long-term transportation need, as identified in the Town of Cobourg Transportation 


Master Plan and Official Plan.  


5.1.1 Potential Impacts 


As described in MTO’s Environmental Guide for Built Heritage and Cultural Heritage Landscapes, the 


following are the potential impacts of transportation design alternatives and alternative methods of 


construction on cultural heritage landscapes and built heritage resources: 


• disruption


• displacement


• isolation


• encroachment


• the introduction of physical visual, audible or atmospheric elements that are not in keeping with the


character and setting of cultural heritage resources


(MTO 2007) 


Impacts considered were based on the MTO requirements and informed by the relationship of the 


resource to the Study Area and anticipated undertaking.  


5.2 RELATIONSHIP TO THE STUDY AREA 


As the Class EA moves towards the evaluation of alternatives and selection of a preferred plan, the list of 


potentially impacted properties will be confirmed and this report will be updated with an evaluation of 


impacts to the identified heritage resources. Table 2 includes where heritage attributes were identified, 


while Appendix B includes a specific overview of each identified heritage resource. For 9234 Danforth 


Road East, an additional assessment is required to determine the heritage integrity of its structures if 


impacts are anticipated for the property. Figure 5 was used to determine the position of the heritage 


attributes in relation to the Study Area. An identified heritage attribute may extend beyond the point 


depicted on Figure 5. Heritage attributes for one property was determined to be situated within the Study 


Area: 


• 2241 Nagle Road (CHL-1)
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6.0 IMPACT ASSESSMENT 


As part of the Class EA process, a Study Area has been determined based on potential Nagle Road 


interchange alternatives. At this time, only the identified CHLs within the Study Area were assessed for 


potential impacts (Table 3). Following the confirmation of project impacts, the evaluation will need to be 


updated. 


Within Table 3 the following acronyms denote the assessment of impacts: NA = Not Anticipated, 


A = Anticipated Impact, P = Potential Impact. 


Table 3: Evaluation of Potential Impacts 
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Discussion 


2241 Nagle 
Road (CHL-
1) 


 P NA NA NA NA The position of the residence and mature trees within the Study 
Area has the potential for impacts resulting from land disturbances 
during construction activities.  


As detailed project impacts and their extent are unknown at 
this time, mitigation measures may need to be prepared once 
construction impacts are determined. 


6.1.1 Avoidance of Potential Impacts 


In general, for the Study Area, the following will need to be taken into account for each CHL to eliminate 


any potential impacts:  


• no removal, alteration, or demolition of the heritage attributes associated with heritage resources


should occur;


• no destructive investigation procedures should be carried out in or near heritage resources;


• no land-disturbing or vegetation-disturbing activities should be carried out in or near heritage


resources.


(MTO 2007) 
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7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 


7.1 AVOIDANCE 


Heritage resources should be avoided during any proposed construction activities determined following 


the Highway 401 Class EA. Specifically, one CHL property was identified within the Study Area:  


• 2241 Nagle Road (CHL-1)


Heritage attributes associated with this heritage resource, the residence, barn, and mature trees should 


be avoided where feasible. Where not feasible, additional assessment is required as per Section 7.2. 


7.2 IMPACT ASSESSMENT 


A Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA) should be completed following the determination of a 


Recommended Plan to identify impacts to heritage resources within, and adjacent to, the Study Area. The 


results of the HIA will be included in an updated version of this report. Depending on the selected 


alternative for the site, a property specific Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report (CHER) may be needed 


prior to the completion of HIA. The additional CHERs will be completed during Detailed Design, as 


required.  


7.3 DEPOSIT COPIES 


To assist in the retention of historic information, copies of this report should be deposited with local 


repositories of historic material and municipalities. Therefore, it is recommended that this report be 


deposited at the following locations: 


Cobourg Public Library 


200 Ontario Street 


Cobourg, ON K9A 5P4 


Township of Hamilton Heritage Committee 


8285 Majestic Hills Drive P.O. Box 1060 


Cobourg, ON K9A 4W5 







7.2 


NAGLE ROAD INTERCHANGE STUDY (GWP 4059-17-00)
CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCES ASSESSMENT 


Recommendations 


May 16, 2019 


This page intentionally left blank.







NAGLE ROAD INTERCHANGE STUDY (GWP 4059-17-00)
CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCES ASSESSMENT 


References 


May 16, 2019 


8.1


8.0 REFERENCES 


Belden, H. 1878. Illustrated Historical Atlas of Northumberland and Durham Ontario. Toronto: H. Belden. 


Bevers, Cameron. 2018. The King’s Highway 401. Electronic Document: 


http://www.thekingshighway.ca/Highway401.htm. Last accessed: October 2, 2018. 


Chapman, L.J., and D.F. Putnam. 1984. The Physiography of Southern Ontario, Third Edition. Toronto: 


Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. 


Craig, Gerald. 1963. Upper Canada: The Formative Years. Don Mills: Oxford University Press. 


Dean, W.G. 1969. Economic Atlas of Ontario. Ontario: University of Toronto Press. 


Department of National Defence. 1938. Topographic Map, Ontario, Port Hope Sheet. Surveyed in 1929 


by the Geographical Section with aid from aerial photographs from the Royal Canadian Air Force. 


Department of National Defence. 1969. Cobourg, Hamilton Township, Northumberland County, Ontario. 


Department of Trade and Commerce. 1924. Sixth Census of Canada, 1921—Volume 1—Population. 


Ottawa: F.A. Acland, Printer to the King’s Most Excellent Majesty. 


Department of Trade and Commerce. 1925. Sixth Census of Canada, 1921—Volume V—Agriculture. 


Ottawa: F.A. Acland, Printer to the King’s Most Excellent Majesty. 


Dominion Bureau of Statistics. 1953. Ninth Census of Canada, 1951, Volume I, Population. Ottawa: 


Edmond Clouter, Queens Printer and Controller of Stationery. 


Ennals, Peter M. 1978. Land and Society in Hamilton Township, Upper Canada, 1797-1861. Dissertation, 


University of Toronto. 


Government of Ontario. 2006a. O. Reg. 9/06: Criteria for Determining Cultural Heritage Value or Interest 


under Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. O.18. Electronic Document: 


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/060009 Last accessed: August 24, 2018. 


Government of Ontario. 2006b. Infosheet #5 in Heritage Resources in the Land Use Planning Process, 


Cultural Heritage and Archaeology Policies of the Ontario Provincial Policy Statement, 2005. 


Toronto: Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport.  


Guillet, Edward. 1948. Cobourg 1709-1948. Cobourg: Business and Professional Women’s Club of 


Cobourg. 


Heritage Resources Centre. 2005. Heritage Bridges Identification and Assessment Guide Ontario 1945-


1965. Waterloo: University of Waterloo. 



http://www.thekingshighway.ca/Highway401.htm

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/060009





NAGLE ROAD INTERCHANGE STUDY (GWP 4059-17-00)
CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCES ASSESSMENT 


References 


May 16, 2019 


8.2 


Highway of Heroes Tree Campaign. 2018. A Tree for Every Hero. Electric Document: 


https://hohtribute.ca/about-hoh/ Last accessed: November 2, 2018. 


Ministry of Culture. 2006. Ontario Heritage Tool Kit. Electronic Document: 


http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/heritage/heritage_toolkit.shtml Last accessed: August 24, 2018. 


Ministry of Culture and Communications. 1992. Guideline for Preparing the Cultural Heritage Resource 


Component of Environmental Assessments. Ontario: Ministry of Culture and Communications.  


Ministry of Culture and Recreation. 1980. Guidelines on the Man-made Heritage Component of 


Environmental Assessments. Toronto: Historical Planning and Research Branch. 


Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport [MTCS]. 2010. Standards & Guidelines for Conservation of 


Provincial Heritage Properties. Electronic Document: 


http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/publications/Standards_Conservation.pdf Last accessed: August 27, 


2018. 


Ministry of Transportation Ontario [MTO]. 2000. Class Environmental Assessment for Provincial 


Transportation Facilities. Electronic Document: http://www.mto.gov.on.ca/english/highway-


bridges/pdfs/environmental-assessment-2000.pdf Last accessed: August 7, 2018. 


Ministry of Transportation [MTO]. 2007. Environmental Guide for Built Heritage and Cultural Heritage 


Landscapes. Electronic document: 


http://www.raqsa.mto.gov.on.ca/techpubs/eps.nsf/0/0c286507a82cde53852572d70059fdf9/$FILE


/FINAL_MTO%20Env%20Guide%20BHCHL%20Final%202007%20ACC.pdf. Last accessed: 


August 24, 2018. 


Ministry of Transportation Ontario [MTO]. 2008. Ontario Heritage Bridge Guidelines for Provincially 


Owned Bridges. 


Ministry of Transportation Ontario [MTO]. 2013. Environmental Reference for Highway Design, Section 


3.7: Cultural Heritage – Built Heritage and Cultural Heritage Landscapes. Provincial and 


Environmental Planning Office, Ministry of Transportation Government of Ontario, Canada. 


Milne, Catherine. No date. The Founding of Hamilton Township. Electronic Document: 


http://www.hamiltontownship.ca/content/general-history Last accessed: October 2, 2018. 


Petryshyn, J. 2012. Cobourg. Electronic Document: 


http://www.thecanadianencyclopedia.ca/en/article/cobourg/  Last accessed: October 2, 2018. 


Statistics Canada. 2017a. Census Profile, 2016, Census, Hamilton, Township, Ontario. Electronic 


Document: http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-


pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=CSD&Code1=3514019&Geo2=CSD&Code2=3514019&



https://hohtribute.ca/about-hoh/

http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/heritage/heritage_toolkit.shtml

http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/publications/Standards_Conservation.pdf

http://www.mto.gov.on.ca/english/highway-bridges/pdfs/environmental-assessment-2000.pdf

http://www.mto.gov.on.ca/english/highway-bridges/pdfs/environmental-assessment-2000.pdf

http://www.raqsa.mto.gov.on.ca/techpubs/eps.nsf/0/0c286507a82cde53852572d70059fdf9/$FILE/FINAL_MTO%20Env%20Guide%20BHCHL%20Final%202007%20ACC.pdf

http://www.raqsa.mto.gov.on.ca/techpubs/eps.nsf/0/0c286507a82cde53852572d70059fdf9/$FILE/FINAL_MTO%20Env%20Guide%20BHCHL%20Final%202007%20ACC.pdf

http://www.hamiltontownship.ca/content/general-history

http://www.thecanadianencyclopedia.ca/en/article/cobourg/

http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=CSD&Code1=3514019&Geo2=CSD&Code2=3514019&Data=Count&SearchText=Hamilton&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All&GeoLevel=PR&GeoCode=3514019&TABID=1

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


8.3


Data=Count&SearchText=Hamilton&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All&GeoLevel=PR


&GeoCode=3514019&TABID=1  Last accessed: October 2, 2018.  


Statistics Canada. 2017b. Census Profile, 2016, Cobourg (Population Centre). Electronic Document: 


http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-


pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=POPC&Code1=0190&Geo2=PR&Code2=47&Data=Co


unt&SearchText=Cobourg&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All  Last accessed: October 


2, 2018.  


United Counties Centennial Book Committee. 1967. Two Centuries of Change, United Counties of 
Northumberland and Durham. Cobourg: United Counties Centennial Book Committee. 



http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=CSD&Code1=3514019&Geo2=CSD&Code2=3514019&Data=Count&SearchText=Hamilton&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All&GeoLevel=PR&GeoCode=3514019&TABID=1

http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=CSD&Code1=3514019&Geo2=CSD&Code2=3514019&Data=Count&SearchText=Hamilton&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All&GeoLevel=PR&GeoCode=3514019&TABID=1

http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=POPC&Code1=0190&Geo2=PR&Code2=47&Data=Count&SearchText=Cobourg&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All

http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=POPC&Code1=0190&Geo2=PR&Code2=47&Data=Count&SearchText=Cobourg&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All

http://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/details/page.cfm?Lang=E&Geo1=POPC&Code1=0190&Geo2=PR&Code2=47&Data=Count&SearchText=Cobourg&SearchType=Begins&SearchPR=01&B1=All





8.4


NAGLE ROAD INTERCHANGE STUDY (GWP 4059-17-00)
CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCES ASSESSMENT 


References 


May 16, 2019 


This page intentionally left blank.







APPENDIX A  
MTO Process











Ministry of Transportation 


Environmental Guide for Built Heritage and Cultural Heritage Landscapes 
 


Feb-07  Page 12 of 35 


Figure 3.1 Process for Undertaking Built Heritage and Cultural Heritage 
Landscape Assessment and Preservation / Mitigation within the Highway 
Design and Construction Process  
 


 


Documentation: 


• None  


Assessment and Preservation / Mitigation 
Strategy (Section 5) 
As per MCL guidance documents: 


1. Prepare historical review
2
 


2. Determine heritage interest and value 
3. Describe impacts 
4. Develop preservation / mitigation 


strategy 
5. Document 


Assessment Update and Preservation / 
Mitigation Details (Section 6) 


1. Update field survey and assessment 
2. Identify and assess additional impacts 
3. Develop mitigation details for: 


a) built heritage resources 
b) heritage bridges 
c) cultural heritage landscapes 
d) construction-related effects 


Documentation: 


• Contract Documentation 


• Detail Design Report 


• Cultural Heritage 
Resource Documentation 
Report required 


Identification of Cultural Heritage 
Resources (Section 4) 
Determine: 


1. Define study area and study zones 
2. Collect background information 
3. Consult with stakeholders


2
 


4. Identify cultural heritage landscapes 
and built heritage resources of 
heritage interest and/or value 


5. Undertake field survey
2
 


Documentation:  


• Cultural Heritage 
Resource Assessment 
Report 


• Cultural Heritage 
Evaluation Report 
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1
 This is an example only, the process can be undertaken in different highway stages depending on 


when the Provincial Environmental Assessment (EA) clearance is obtained see sub-section 3.1.7 and 
Section 2 of the Environmental Reference for Highway Design for details. 
 
2
 If the provincial Environmental Assessment (EA) is cleared in Detail Design, these components need 


to be completed for the technically preferred route prior to the Detail Design as the design team will 
need to use this information to make decisions early in Detail Design.  For details on obtaining EA 
clearances, see Section 2 of MTO’s Environmental Reference for Highway Design. 
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CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCE FORM: 2197 Nagle Road 


BUILT HERITAGE RESOURCE (BHR) 


Built Heritage Resource No.: N/A 


 


Lots: 9 and 10 


Concession: 1 


Municipality: Township of Hamilton  


County/R.M.: Northumberland County 


Landscape Category: Residence 


Landscape Feature: Residence and mature 
spruce trees 


Current Use: Residence   


Integrity: Undetermined. The residence is not visible from the roadway due to set-back and vegetation.  


Alterations: Undetermined. 


Comments: The property is situated adjacent to the Study Area. 


History: The structure on the property dates between 1938-1969 based on topographic mapping. A 
structure is depicted on the 1969 Cobourg, Ontario topographic map. No structure is depicted on the 1938 
Port Hope, Ontario topographic map.  


Association/Themes: Undetermined.  


Landmark: No 


Associated BHR/CHL: No 


Statement of Significance: 
(i.e., local, provincial or federal, if applicable) 
 
N/A.  The structure is not visible from the roadway, nor is it recognized as a heritage property by the 
Township of Hamilton.   
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CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCE FORM: 2241 NAGLE ROAD 


CULTURAL HERITAGE LANDSCAPES (CHL) 


Cultural Heritage Landscape No.: 1 


 


 


Lots: 9 and 10 


Concession: 1 


Municipality: Township of Hamilton 


County/R.M.: Northumberland County 


Landscape Category: Farmstead 


Landscape Feature: Residence, barn, and 
mature trees  


Current Use: Farm and residence   


Integrity: Heritage integrity is intact. Residence and barn are both in good visual condition. While the 
view of the residence from the roadway is obstructed by vegetation, the visible portions appear in good 
visual condition. The barn adjacent to the residence is also in good visual condition. The residence is a 
two-storey structure with medium-pitched hip roof with asphalt shingles. The residence has a stone 
exterior and wood dentils around its eaves. The front (west) elevation has a central entrance portico with 
wood columns, wood dentils, and stone steps. The timber frame barn has a gambrel roof with lightning 
rods. The front (west) elevation of the barn reads ‘Fieldstone’. The barn has a parged foundation that is 
painted white. Attached to the barn is a one-storey wood outbuilding with a side gable roof. The property 
has ornamental gardens, mature spruce and willow trees, and agricultural fields.  


Alterations: Maintained, sympathetic alterations.  


Comments: The property is situated adjacent to the Study Area.  


History: According to historic and topographic maps, the residence was constructed between 1878 and 
1930.  


Association/Themes: Representative of a late 19th to early 20th century residence with Georgian Revival 
design influence seen through its two-storey massing, central entrance portico with columns, and sash 
windows. The barn is representative of a late 19th to early 20th century Ontario vernacular barn.  


Landmark: No 


Associated BHR/CHL: No 
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Statement of Significance: 
(i.e., local, provincial or federal, if applicable) 
 
The farmstead is located at 2241 Nagle Road, in the Township of Hamilton, within Northumberland 
County. The construction of this two-storey residence dates to between 1878 and 1930. It is a 
representative example of a vernacular Ontario farmhouse with Georgian Revival influences. This 
residence has the potential to yield information that contributes to an understanding of the Township of 
Hamilton. This property supports the late 19th to early 20th century rural character of the area and is 
physically and historically linked to its surroundings. 
 
Identified Heritage Attributes: Residence: two storey structure, medium-pitched hip roof, stone 
exterior, wood dentils around eaves, central front (west) entrance portico with wood columns, wood 
dentils and stone steps. Barn: timber frame structure, gambrel roof, lightning rods, and ‘Fieldstone’ 
lettering. Property: mature spruce and willow trees and agricultural fields.  
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CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCE FORM: 9148 Danforth Road East 


CULTURAL HERITAGE LANDSCAPES (CHL) 


Cultural Heritage Landscape No.: 2 


 


 


Lot: 9 


Concession: 1 


Municipality: Township of Hamilton 


County/R.M.: Northumberland County 


Landscape Category: Farmstead 


Landscape Feature: Residence, outbuildings, 
tree allée, wood fence, and pasture lands. 


Current Use: Farmstead   


Integrity: Heritage integrity is intact. Residence is in good visual condition with modern alterations. No 
barn structure is visible from the roadway. The residence is set back from the roadway and reached by a 
long gravel driveway with a tree allée and wood fencing. The view of the residence from the roadway is 
obstructed by distance and vegetation. The residence is a one and a half storey structure with a medium-
pitched cross gable roof with asphalt shingles. The front (south) elevation has a central medium-pitched 
gabled dormer. The residence is clad in modern siding and has modern windows and doors. The front 
elevation has an enclosed porch with upper balcony. The foundation material was not determined. The 
property includes pasture lands and is bordered in a mix of wood fencing and wood post and metal 
fencing.  


Alterations: Modern alterations including exterior cladding, windows, and doors.  


Comments: The property is situated adjacent to the Study Area.  


History: A structure is depicted on the property on the 1878 Township of Hamilton Map in the Illustrated 
Historical Atlas of the Counties of Northumberland and Durham (Figure 3). The property owner associated 
with the structure is Mallory.   


Association/Themes: Representative of a late 19th century residence with some influence of Ontario 
Gothic Revival architecture seen through its one and a half storey massing and central gabled dormer.   


Landmark: No 


Associated BHR/CHL: No 
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Statement of Significance: 
(i.e., local, provincial or federal, if applicable) 
 
The farmstead is located at 9148 Danforth Road, in the Township of Hamilton, within Northumberland 
County. The construction of this one and a half residence dates to pre-1878. It is a representative example 
of a vernacular Ontario farmhouse with Ontario Gothic Revival influences. This residence has the potential 
to yield information that contributes to an understanding of the Township of Hamilton. This property 
supports the late 19th century rural character of the area and is physically and historically linked to its 
surroundings. 
 
Identified Heritage Attributes: Residence: one and a half storey structure, medium-pitched cross gable 
roof, and medium-pitched central (south) gable dormer. Property: wood fencing, and tree allée. 
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CULTURAL HERITAGE RESOURCE FORM: 9234 Danforth Road East 


CULTURAL HERITAGE LANDSCAPE (CHL) 


Cultural Heritage Landscape No.: 3 


 


Lot: 8 


Concession: 1 


Municipality: Township of Hamilton 


County/R.M.: Northumberland County 


Landscape Category: Farmstead 


Landscape Feature: Residence, long winding 
driveway, and agricultural fields. 


Current Use: Farmstead  


Integrity: Undetermined. Structures on the property are set far back from the roadway off a long winding 
driveway and are located on a rise on the property, although no structures are visible from the roadway. 
The property includes agricultural fields.   


Alterations: Undetermined. No visible structures from roadway.  


Comments: The property is situated adjacent to the Study Area. Additional assessment is required to 
confirm the presence/integrity of structures. 


History: Three structures are depicted on the property on the 1878 Township of Hamilton Map in the 
Illustrated Historical Atlas of the Counties of Northumberland and Durham (Figure 3). The owner 
associated with the structures was J. Bird. Structures are also depicted on the property on the 1938 Port 
Hope, Ontario, topographic map in close proximity to the location of the current structures (Figure 4).  


Association/Themes: The structures on the property date prior to 1878. The structures may contribute to 
the 19th century agricultural character of the area and could be physically and historically linked to its 
surroundings. 


Landmark: No 


Associated BHR/CHL: No 


Statement of Significance: 
(i.e., local, provincial or federal, if applicable) 
 
Additional assessment required.  
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Robinson, Jennifer

To: Addley, Diana
Subject: RE: Notice of PIC #2 - Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059-17-00) [MCM File 

0010309]

From: Barboza, Karla (MCM) <Karla.Barboza@ontario.ca>  
Sent: Monday, May 1, 2023 9:01 AM 
To: Addley, Diana <Diana.Addley@stantec.com> 
Cc: Minkin, Dan (MHSTCI) <dan.minkin@ontario.ca>; Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) <muhammad.waseem@ontario.ca>; 
Pipe, Erin (MTO) <erin.pipe@ontario.ca>; Cooke, Gregg <gregg.cooke@stantec.com>; Hedges, Michelle (MTO) 
<Michelle.Hedges@ontario.ca> 
Subject: RE: Notice of PIC #2 ‐ Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059‐17‐00) [MCM File 0010309] 

Hi Diana and Michelle, 

Thanks for the electronic copies of the PIC notice and the Cultural Heritage Resources Assessment Report. 

We will review the Cultural Heritage Report and will provide comments, as appropriate, by late May. 

Could you please advise whether archaeological assessment was undertaken for this project? If yes, could you 
please send us the Project Information Form number?  

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
Sent: May 2, 2023 3:12 PM 
To: Barboza, Karla (MCM) <Karla.Barboza@ontario.ca> 
Cc: Minkin, Dan (MCM) <Dan.Minkin@ontario.ca>; Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) <Muhammad.Waseem@ontario.ca>; 
Pipe, Erin (MTO) <Erin.Pipe@ontario.ca>; Cooke, Gregg <gregg.cooke@stantec.com>; Hedges, Michelle (MTO) 
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

A Stage 1 AA was completed as part of this study in 2019.  The Stage 1 AA report was accepted by the Ministry on May 
18, 2020, under PIF P415-0169-2018, File Number 0009170 (please refer to attached). 

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

From: Minkin, Dan (MCM) <Dan.Minkin@ontario.ca>  
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 10:15 PM 
To: Addley, Diana <Diana.Addley@stantec.com>; Hedges, Michelle (MTO) <Michelle.Hedges@ontario.ca> 
Cc: Waseem, Muhammad (MTO) <muhammad.waseem@ontario.ca>; Pipe, Erin (MTO) <erin.pipe@ontario.ca>; Cooke, 
Gregg <gregg.cooke@stantec.com> 
Subject: RE: Notice of PIC #2 ‐ Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study (GWP 4059‐17‐00) [MCM File 0010309] 

Good evening, 
Please find our comments on the CHRA attached. 

Dan Minkin| Heritage Planner  
Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism
Citizenship, Inclusion and Heritage Division| Heritage Branch | Heritage Planning Unit
T. 416. 786.7553| Email: dan.minkin@ontario.ca

Effective October 17, 2022, units responsible for cultural heritage matters have been transferred  from the Ministry of Tourism, Culture and 
Sport (MTCS) to the Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism (MCM). Responsibility for the Ontario Heritage Act and associated Provincial 
functions is now held by MCM. Individual staff roles and contact information remain unchanged.



   
 

   
 

Ministry of Citizenship 
and Multiculturalism 

Heritage Planning Unit 
Heritage Branch 
Citizenship, Inclusion and 
Heritage Division 
5th Flr, 400 University Ave 
Tel.:  416.786.7553 
 

Ministère des Affaires civiques 
et du Multiculturalisme 

Unité de la planification relative au 
patrimoine 
Direction du patrimoine 
Division des affaires civiques, de 
l’inclusion et du patrimoine 
Tél.:  416.786.7553 
 

 

 
 

June 1, 2023     EMAIL ONLY  
 
Michelle Hedges 
Senior Policy Analyst – Heritage 
Environmental Policy Office, Transportation Policy Branch 
Ministry of Transportation 
159 Sir William Hearst Avenue, 3rd Floor 
Toronto, ON  M3M 0B7 
michelle.hedges@ontario.ca   
 
MCM File : 0010309 
Proponent : Ministry of Transportation and the Town of Cobourg  

Subject : Cultural Heritage Resource Assessment 
Project : Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study GWP 4059-17-00 
Location : Highway 401 and Nagle Road, Town of Cobourg and Township of 

Hamilton 
 

 
Dear Ms. Hedges: 
 
Thank you for providing the Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism (MCM) with the Cultural 
Heritage Resource Assessment (CHRA) for the above-referenced project dated May 16, 2019, 
prepared by Stantec.  

MCM’s interest in this Environmental Assessment (EA) project relates to its mandate of 
conserving Ontario’s cultural heritage, which includes: 

• archaeological resources, including land and marine; 

• built heritage resources, including bridges and monuments; and 

• cultural heritage landscapes. 
 
We have reviewed the CHRA and offer the following comments. 
 
Section 7.2 notes that “Depending on the selected alternative for the site, a property specific 
Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report (CHER) may be needed prior to the completion of HIA.” The 
CHRA should provide detail as to the circumstances under which such a CHER would be 
required, and what additional information it would need to provide in support of the subsequent 
HIA. 
 

mailto:michelle.hedges@ontario.ca


0010309 – MTO/Coburg – 401/Nagle Road Interchange MCM Comments 2 

 

It is the sole responsibility of proponents to ensure that any information and documentation submitted as part of their EA report or file 
is accurate.  The Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism (MCM) makes no representation or warranty as to the completeness, 
accuracy or quality of the any checklists, reports or supporting documentation submitted as part of the EA process, and in no way 
shall MCM  be liable for any harm, damages, costs, expenses, losses, claims or actions that may result if any checklists, reports or 
supporting documents are discovered to be inaccurate, incomplete, misleading or fraudulent.  

Should previously undocumented archaeological resources be discovered, they may be a new archaeological site and therefore 
subject to Section 48(1) of the Ontario Heritage Act. The proponent or person discovering the archaeological resources must cease 
alteration of the site immediately and engage a licensed consultant archaeologist to carry out an archaeological assessment, in 
compliance with Section 48(1) of the Ontario Heritage Act. 
 
The Funeral, Burial and Cremation Services Act, 2002, S.O. 2002, c.33 requires that any person discovering human remains must 
cease all activities immediately and notify the police or coroner. If the coroner does not suspect foul play in the disposition of the 
remains, in accordance with Ontario Regulation 30/11 the coroner shall notify the Registrar, Ontario Ministry of Public and Business 
Service Delivery, which administers provisions of that Act related to burial sites. In situations where human remains are associated 
with archaeological resources, the Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism should also be notified (at archaeology@ontario.ca) to 
ensure that the archaeological site is not subject to unlicensed alterations which would be a contravention of the Ontario Heritage Act.  

As reports of this sort rely on the professional expertise of the qualified persons who prepare 
them, a section should be included summarizing both the qualifications of each staff member 
involved in the report’s preparation and their role in it. 
 
Thank you for consulting MCM on this project and please continue to do so throughout the EA 
process.  If you have any questions or require clarification, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Dan Minkin 
Heritage Planner 
Dan.Minkin@Ontario.ca  

mailto:Dan.Minkin@Ontario.ca
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Robinson, Jennifer

From: Harper, Cameron <HarperC@northumberland.ca>
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 11:46 AM
To: Waseem, Muhammad (MTO); Cooke, Gregg; Robinson, Jennifer; Terry Hoekstra; Addley, Diana
Cc: Martin, Mandy; Ostrander, Brian; Jibb, Scott; Logel, John; Hankivsky, Olena; Cleveland, Lucas; Crate, 

Bob; Moore, Jennifer; Marshall, Denise; Mather, Maddison
Subject: Nagle Road Interchange
Attachments: County Response to Nagle Road Delegation_Apr 17 2023.pdf

Good morning Project Team,  

The County of Northumberland would like to thank you for your presentaƟon to Public Works CommiƩee on February 
27, 2023 regarding the Nagle Road interchange.  As a follow‐up to that presentaƟon, we would like to submit the 
following concern for your consideraƟon.  

Regards,  

Cameron Harper, P.Eng. 
Manager of Infrastructure, Public Works 
Northumberland County | 555 Courthouse Road, Cobourg, ON,  K9A 5J6  
T (905) 372‐3329  X2301  

 Caution: This email originated from outside of Stantec. Please take extra precaution. 

 Attention: Ce courriel provient de l'extérieur de Stantec. Veuillez prendre des précautions supplémentaires. 

 Atención: Este correo electrónico proviene de fuera de Stantec. Por favor, tome precauciones adicionales. 



555 Courthouse Road 
Cobourg, ON 

K9A 5J6 
(905)-372-3329 

1-(800)-354-7050 
 

 

 

April 18, 2023 
 
 
Waseem Muhammad, P.Eng 
Senior Project Engineer 
Ministry of Transportation  
 
Gregg Cooke, P.Eng 
Project Manager 
Stantec Consulting Ltd. 
 
Terry Hoekstra, C.E.T. 
Manager of Engineering and Capital Projects 
Town of Cobourg 
 
 
Re: Concerns about future traffic flow from Highway 401 and potential impact to the Emergency 
Detour Routes as a result of new Nagle Road interchange 
 
Dear Project Team,  
 
Following the presentation at the Northumberland County Public Works Committee on February 27th, 
the recommendation from the Committee was further discussed at the March 15th, 2023 Council 
Meeting.  During the March 15th, 2023 meeting, County Council directed Staff to follow-up with the 
Ministry of Transportation, Stantec, and the Town of Cobourg in regards to the new Nagle Road 
interchange proposed to support growth in Cobourg through the following resolution: 
  
 “Council Resolution 2023-03-15-208 
 Moved by Councillor Scott Jibb 
 Seconded by Councillor John Logel 
 
 That County Council adopt the following: 

• Receive the PowerPoint presentation regarding 
‘Highway 401 Nagle Road Interchange Study’ for 
information, and; 

• Direct Staff to send a letter to the Ministry of 
Transportation, Stantec, and the Town of Cobourg 
outlining concerns regarding traffic flow and 



existing road conditions with Highway 401 
Emergency Detour Routes.” 

One of the concerns raised by County Council was the impact of the new interchange on the existing or 
potential future Highway 401 Emergency Detour Routes (EDR) in the area.  Therefore, Northumberland 
County Public Works Department is requesting further investigation into the future proposed Highway 
401 EDRs once the interchange is complete.  

The review should consider the connecting County and Municipal Road network including intersections 
(condition, structural adequacy of the pavement for increased traffic volumes and heavy truck traffic, 
geometry to accommodate turning movements of heavy trucks, etc.) and identify areas of potential 
concern, and associated mitigation measures, improvements or upgrades required for both the existing 
and potential future EDRs.  Mitigation measures should also consider measures to ensure Highway 401 
traffic use the designated EDRs and deter traffic from using the Highway 401 interchanges and the 
connecting road network that are not part of a designated EDR.  

I look forward to hearing back from the project team at MTO, Stantec and the Town of Cobourg on this 
request.  If you require further clarification or information on the request, please do not hesitate to 
contact me.       

Sincerely, 

Denise Marshall, P.Eng 
Director of Public Works 
Northumberland County  
marshalld@northumberland.ca 

mailto:marshalld@northumberland.ca


Robinson, Jennifer

From: Cooke, Gregg
Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 12:32 PM
To: Harper, Cameron; Marshall, Denise
Cc: Waseem, Muhammad (MTO); Terry Hoekstra; Addley, Diana; Robinson, Jennifer; Belliveau, Tim
Subject: RE: Nagle Road Interchange
Attachments: ltr_outgoing_county_20230518_fnl_20230612.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Cameron, Denise, 
Please see the attached response letter from the project team. Please let us know if you have any additional questions or 
concerns. 
Regards, 

Gregg Cooke P.Eng. 
Consultant Project Manager 

Direct: 905 381-3227 
Mobile: 289 439-9630 
gregg.cooke@stantec.com 

Stantec 

  

The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately. 
  

Please consider the environment before printing this email.



 

  
  
 

Stantec Consulting Ltd. 
200-835 Paramount Drive 
Stoney Creek ON  L8J 0B4 

June 12, 2023 

Project/File: 165001106 

Denise Marshall, P.Eng 
Director of Public Works 
Northumberland County 
555 Courthouse Road 
Cobourg, ON  K9A 5J6 

Dear Denise Marshall, 

Reference: Nagle Road Interchange Study, GWP 4059-17-00 

Thank you for your letter dated April 18, 2023, regarding the above captioned project. Your comments 
related to the impact of the new interchange on the existing or potential future Highway 401 Emergency 
Detour Routes (EDR) has been noted by the project team. As requested, we are providing the following 
response to the County Council’s concerns on behalf of the Ministry of Transportation and the Town of 
Cobourg. 

Regarding the existing EDR, it is the local municipality’s responsibility to designate and maintain 
permanently signed detour routes to be used in the event of a closure on a 400-series highway. As such, 
the County will be required to monitor any impacts to the existing EDR, which includes CR 45, CR 22, and 
CR 25. 

Regarding mitigation measures to ensure the use of the EDRs, it is intended that police close Highway 401 
in advance of CR 45 (eastbound) and CR 25 (westbound) so that the CR 22 interchange is not available for 
traffic exiting Highway 401. Furthermore, the Ministry has provided gates at the CR 22 interchange 
entrance ramps that can be closed so that the CR 22 interchange is not available for traffic to enter 
Highway 401 during a closure. A similar strategy could be utilized at the future Nagle Road interchange if 
required. The County should continue to consult with police and the Ministry of Transportation to ensure 
that the EDRs are utilized as intended during a temporary diversion of highway traffic. 

If the county or any other municipality identify a need for a new EDR after the construction of the Nagle 
Road interchange, the municipal road authority having jurisdiction will consult the MTO, OPP, local police 
services, and relevant municipalities in the selection of the new EDR. The municipal road authority having 
jurisdiction will be responsible for selecting a route that is suitable for EDR designation, and it shall be 
approved by the Ministry of Transportation and the municipal road authority’s Council.  The municipal road 
authority is responsible for the operations and maintenance of the infrastructure under their jurisdiction.   

  



June 12, 2023 
Denise Marshall, P.Eng 
Director of Public Works 
Page 2 of 2  

Reference: Nagle Road Interchange Study, GWP 4059-17-00 

  
  

 

The project team would like to thank the County for its ongoing efforts for the operation and maintenance of 
the EDR.  

If you have any other questions, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Sincerely, 

STANTEC CONSULTING LTD. 

 
 
 
 
Gregg Cooke P.Eng. 
Consultant Project Manager 
Mobile: (289) 439-9630 
gregg.cooke@stantec.com 

 

Copy: Muhammad Waseem, P.Eng, Senior Project Engineer, Ministry of Transportation 
Terry Hoekstra, C.E.T., Manager of Engineering and Capital Projects, Town of Cobourg 

  
 
 




